
  

 

 
 

138 S. Brandon St.  Fallbrook CA 92028  760-731-9187 

 

 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

REGULAR BOARD  MEETING 

 
 

WEDNESDAY 
AUGUST 9, 2017 

 
6:00 PM 

 
AT 

 
FPUD 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
990 EAST MISSION ROAD  
FALLBROOK, CA 92028 



 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, August 9, 2017, 6:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Public Utilities District, 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 
 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 

B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
Pursuant to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific situations, as set 

forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board 

finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item 

was continued from an earlier  meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the 

earlier meeting. 
 

 
 

C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is an opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the District.  

For the record, please state your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and presented to the Board 

President or the recording secretary.  The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes  

 
 

D. CONSENT ITEMS 

 D1. Approval of June 2017 Financial Statements  

 D2. Minutes of July 7, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 

 D3. Minutes of July 12, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 

 D4. Minutes of July 28, 2017 Special Board Meeting 

 
 

E. REPORTS 

E1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 

E2. Gov’t/Public Relation/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and Tinker 

E3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 

E4. Executive Director – Bobbi Palmer  

E5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 

 
 

F. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

 F1. County Requirement for Street Improvements 

 F2. Second Amendment to Purchase & Sale Agreement 

 F3. Consideration of Approval of 2017-2018 Budget  

 
 

G. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 

 G1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 

  G1a. Item(s) for future board agendas  

  G1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) meeting 

– Monday, August 21, 2017, 9:00-10:30am, Fallbrook Public Utility District 

Board Room 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, September 6,  2:00-3:00pm 

   • Woman of Wellness – Thursday, September 7, 2017, 6pm – Fallbrook Library 

   • ACHD 65th Annual Meeting – September 12-14, 2017, San Diego 

   •   CSDA Annual Conference, September 25-28, Monterey, CA 

Page 1 of 128



G2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, September 13, 2017, Fallbrook Public Utility 

District Board Room 

 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT 

NOTE: This agenda posted at the Fallbrook Regional Health District Administration Office on Friday, August 4, 2017. The American 

with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 

benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office 24 hours prior to 

the meeting at 760-731-9187. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
        Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 2 of 128



Page 3 of 128



Page 4 of 128



Jun 30, 17 May 31, 17 $ Change

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
102.9 · Cal Trust Investment Account 4,247,244.58 4,246,902.70 341.88
102.2 · Cash in Bank - New Operating 1,094,154.99 1,160,174.32 (66,019.33)
102.6 · Cash in Bank -LAIF 1,448,487.47 1,448,487.47 0.00

Total Checking/Savings 6,789,887.04 6,855,564.49 (65,677.45)

Other Current Assets
104 · Prepaid Insurance 46,775.72 50,467.86 (3,692.14)
107 · Tax apportion receivable 14,050.02 0.00 14,050.02
114 · Interest Receivable 7,817.28 4,572.21 3,245.07

Total Other Current Assets 68,643.02 55,040.07 13,602.95

Total Current Assets 6,858,530.06 6,910,604.56 (52,074.50)

Fixed Assets
120.01 · ALVARADO BLDG 291,240.00 291,240.00 0.00
121 · Equipment 21,394.96 21,394.96 0.00
121.2 · Equipment Depreciation (19,725.29) (19,653.45) (71.84)
122.0 · ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE

122.01 · FALLBROOK HOSPITAL 4,420,120.00 4,417,521.00 2,599.00
122.02 · WELLNESS CENTER 291,240.00 291,240.00 0.00

Total 122.0 · ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE 4,711,360.00 4,708,761.00 2,599.00

Total Fixed Assets 5,004,269.67 5,001,742.51 2,527.16

TOTAL ASSETS 11,862,799.73 11,912,347.07 (49,547.34)

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

140 · Accounts Payable 67,809.60 80,198.83 (12,389.23)

Total Accounts Payable 67,809.60 80,198.83 (12,389.23)

Credit Cards
150.1 · American Express 41007 601.28 (1,444.97) 2,046.25

Total Credit Cards 601.28 (1,444.97) 2,046.25

Other Current Liabilities
204 · Accrued  Vacation & Sick Leave 22,326.53 5,608.24 16,718.29
215 · Comm Healthcare Programs Pybl

215.24 · District Sponsored Programs 25,765.89 25,829.54 (63.65)

Total 215 · Comm Healthcare Programs ... 25,765.89 25,829.54 (63.65)

Total Other Current Liabilities 48,092.42 31,437.78 16,654.64

Total Current Liabilities 116,503.30 110,191.64 6,311.66

Total Liabilities 116,503.30 110,191.64 6,311.66

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET COMPARISON

Comparison of June 2017 to May 2017

Report 1

Page 5 of 128



Jun 30, 17 May 31, 17 $ Change

Equity
300 · Unrestricted Fund Balance 11,464,702.03 11,464,702.03 0.00
Net Income 281,594.40 337,453.40 (55,859.00)

Total Equity 11,746,296.43 11,802,155.43 (55,859.00)

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 11,862,799.73 11,912,347.07 (49,547.34)

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET COMPARISON

Comparison of June 2017 to May 2017

Report 1

Page 6 of 128



Jun 17 Jul '16 - ...

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 21,437 1,793,446
403 · Interest / Dividends 7,817 59,023
406 · Unearned Inc(Loss) - Cal Trust (4,230) (37,775)

Total 400. · District 25,024 1,814,695

450. · Properties
450.01 · Disposition of Surplus Property 133,030
460 · Lease Income

460.01 · A+ Urgent Care 4,800 57,600

Total 460 · Lease Income 4,800 57,600

Total 450. · Properties 4,800 190,630

Total Income 29,824 2,005,325

Gross Profit 29,824 2,005,325

Expense
500 · Administrative Expenses

500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 16,718 17,870
500.10 · Salaries 17,870 210,617
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 1,520 16,974
500.14 · W/C Insurance 136 1,633
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 1,318 12,222
500.16 · Board Stipends 2,000 16,300
500.17 · Education & Conferences 154 15,978
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 15,455
500.19 · Insurance - General 3,556 42,813
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 10,200
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 8,600
500.23 · General Counsel 7,333 95,753
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 305 3,830
02 · I.T. and Website services 853 5,486
03 · Refreshments 101 5,631
04 · Office Expenses 487 10,868
05 · Admin fees 70
06 · Independent Contract Services 3,200 37,326

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 4,946 63,210

500.27 · Depreciation 72 564
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 1,565 15,825
500.32 · Consultant Fees 10,413 82,738
500.33 · Copier Lease 839 9,698
580.01 · General Election 309

Total 500 · Administrative Expenses 69,288 636,759

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Income Statement

For the Month Ended June 30, 2017 & Fiscal Year to Date

Report 2

Page 7 of 128



Jun 17 Jul '16 - ...

590 · Management & Maintenance
590.14 · Appraisal Services 350 16,785
590.01 · Building Engineer 6,689 89,142
590.02 · Gas & Electric 700 55,716
590.03 · Water 1,942 27,386
590.04 · Waste Management 162 1,529
590.05 · Security 1,100 13,213
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 1,600 20,413
590.07 · Custodial Services 555 4,155
590.08 · Elevator 173 2,705
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 235 408
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 31 3,618
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Service 2,858 41,353
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 2,862
590.13 · CHS Residual Transition Expense 2,500

Total 590 · Management & Maintenance 16,395 281,785

600 · Community Health Contracts
600.02 · Fbk Citizens Crime Prevention 8,000
600.59 · Palomar Health Foundation 10,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 15,000
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 9,000
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 12,000
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 37,200
600.07 · Fbk Senior Citizens Srvc Club 62,138
600.08 · Fallbrook Smiles Project 70,000
600.11 · Palomar Family Counseling Srvc 74,000
600.14 · Fbk Family Health Center 85,000
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 130,089
600.18 · Fallbrook Food Pantry 60,000
600.33 · REINS Therapeutic Prgm 46,300
600.37 · Trauma Intervention Prgm of SD 8,000
600.46 · Mental Health Systems, Inc. 9,620
600.47 · FUHS - Asperger's Support Ctr 6,500
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 8,500
600.57 · NC Fire Protection District 54,839

Total 600 · Community Health Contracts 706,186

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · A+ Urgent Care 99,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 99,000

Total Expense 85,683 1,723,730

Net Ordinary Income (55,859) 281,594

Net Income (55,859) 281,594

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Income Statement

For the Month Ended June 30, 2017 & Fiscal Year to Date

Report 2

Page 8 of 128



Jul '16 -... Budget $ Over ...

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 1,793,446 1,700,000 93,446
403 · Interest / Dividends 59,023 40,000 19,023
406 · Unearned Inc(Loss) - Cal Trust (37,775) 0 (37,775)

Total 400. · District 1,814,695 1,740,000 74,695

450. · Properties
450.01 · Disposition of Surplus Property 133,030 0 133,030
460 · Lease Income

460.01 · A+ Urgent Care 57,600 57,600 0

Total 460 · Lease Income 57,600 57,600 0

Total 450. · Properties 190,630 57,600 133,030

Total Income 2,005,325 1,797,600 207,725

Gross Profit 2,005,325 1,797,600 207,725

Expense
500 · Administrative Expenses

500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 17,870
500.10 · Salaries 210,617 238,000 (27,383)
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 16,974 25,200 (8,226)
500.14 · W/C Insurance 1,633 1,150 483
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 12,222 18,360 (6,138)
500.16 · Board Stipends 16,300 26,400 (10,100)
500.17 · Education & Conferences 15,978 15,000 978
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 15,455 14,000 1,455
500.19 · Insurance - General 42,813 45,000 (2,187)
500.20 · Independent Accounting Servi... 10,200 10,200 0
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 8,600 8,500 100
500.23 · General Counsel 95,753 125,000 (29,247)
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 3,830 5,400 (1,570)
02 · I.T. and Website services 5,486 2,400 3,086
03 · Refreshments 5,631 4,400 1,231
04 · Office Expenses 10,868 16,000 (5,132)
05 · Admin fees 70
06 · Independent Contract Services 37,326 56,000 (18,674)

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 63,210 84,200 (20,990)

500.27 · Depreciation 564 1,661 (1,097)
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 15,825 6,000 9,825
500.32 · Consultant Fees 82,738 15,000 67,738
500.33 · Copier Lease 9,698 6,000 3,698
500.85 · Calif Mandated Reimbursement 0 (10,000) 10,000
580.01 · General Election 309 40,000 (39,691)

Total 500 · Administrative Expenses 636,759 669,671 (32,912)

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget

July 2016 through June 2017

Report 3

Page 9 of 128



Jul '16 -... Budget $ Over ...

590 · Management & Maintenance
590.14 · Appraisal Services 16,785
590.01 · Building Engineer 89,142 84,500 4,642
590.02 · Gas & Electric 55,716 94,200 (38,484)
590.03 · Water 27,386 24,000 3,386
590.04 · Waste Management 1,529 1,500 29
590.05 · Security 13,213 13,500 (287)
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environ... 20,413 32,500 (12,087)
590.07 · Custodial Services 4,155 1,500 2,655
590.08 · Elevator 2,705 2,000 705
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 408 1,500 (1,092)
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 3,618 21,150 (17,532)
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Servi... 41,353 0 41,353
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 2,862
590.13 · CHS Residual Transition Expe... 2,500

Total 590 · Management & Maintenance 281,785 276,350 5,435

600 · Community Health Contracts
600.02 · Fbk Citizens Crime Prevention 8,000 8,000 0
600.59 · Palomar Health Foundation 10,000 10,000 0
600.58 · Michelle's Place 15,000 15,000 0
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 9,000 9,000 0
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 12,000 12,000 0
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 37,200 37,200 0
600.07 · Fbk Senior Citizens Srvc Club 62,138 61,863 275
600.08 · Fallbrook Smiles Project 70,000 70,000 0
600.11 · Palomar Family Counseling Srvc 74,000 74,000 0
600.14 · Fbk Family Health Center 85,000 85,000 0
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 130,089 130,089 0
600.18 · Fallbrook Food Pantry 60,000 60,000 0
600.33 · REINS Therapeutic Prgm 46,300 46,300 0
600.37 · Trauma Intervention Prgm of SD 8,000 8,000 0
600.46 · Mental Health Systems, Inc. 9,620 9,620 0
600.47 · FUHS - Asperger's Support Ctr 6,500 6,500 0
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 8,500 8,500 0
600.57 · NC Fire Protection District 54,839 29,839 25,000

Total 600 · Community Health Contracts 706,186 680,911 25,275

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · A+ Urgent Care 99,000 0 99,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 99,000 0 99,000

Total Expense 1,723,730 1,626,932 96,798

Net Ordinary Income 281,594 170,668 110,926

Net Income 281,594 170,668 110,926

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget

July 2016 through June 2017

Report 3

Page 10 of 128



TOTAL
Jul 16 Aug 16 Sep 16 Oct 16 Nov 16 Dec 16 Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr 17 May 17 Jun 17 Jul '16 - Jun 17

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 13,065 12,100 15,100 13,506 75,399 633,527 253,274 42,453 45,983 388,488 184,194 22,910 1,700,000
403 · Interest / Dividends 3,841 3,925 2,044 3,100 2,663 5,116 5,230 2,693 3,815 2,690 2,731 2,151 40,000

Total 400. · District 16,906 16,025 17,144 16,606 78,062 638,643 258,505 45,146 49,798 391,178 186,926 25,061 1,740,000

450. · Properties
460 · Lease Income

460.01 · A+ Urgent Care 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total 460 · Lease Income 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total 450. · Properties 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total Income 21,706 20,825 21,944 21,406 82,862 643,443 263,305 49,946 54,598 395,978 191,726 29,861 1,797,600

Gross Profit 21,706 20,825 21,944 21,406 82,862 643,443 263,305 49,946 54,598 395,978 191,726 29,861 1,797,600

Expense
500 · Administrative Expenses

500.10 · Salaries 16,533 18,533 18,533 18,533 20,533 20,533 20,533 20,533 20,910 20,910 20,910 21,006 238,000
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 25,200
500.14 · W/C Insurance 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 1,150
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 18,360
500.16 · Board Stipends 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 26,400
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 7,500 591 591 591 591 591 591 590 591 591 591 591 14,000
500.19 · Insurance - General 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 10,200
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 0 0 0 8,500 0 0 8,500
500.23 · General Counsel 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 125,000
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 5,400
02 · I.T. and Website services 933 250 250 0 250 217 0 0 250 0 250 0 2,400
03 · Refreshments 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 4,400
04 · Office supplies 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 16,000
06 · Independent Contract Services 2,176 2,176 2,176 5,576 5,556 5,506 5,506 5,506 5,406 5,404 5,506 5,506 56,000

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 5,259 4,576 4,576 7,726 7,956 7,873 7,656 7,656 7,806 7,554 7,906 7,656 84,200

500.27 · Depreciation 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 1,661
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 4,000 250 250 250 100 100 100 100 200 250 250 150 6,000
500.32 · Consultant Fees 8,000 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 600 600 600 15,000
500.33 · Copier Lease 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
500.85 · Calif Mandated Reimbursement (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (10,000)
580.01 · General Election 0 0 0 40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40,000

Total 500 · Administrative Expenses 63,290 46,598 46,598 98,248 51,828 51,745 51,528 51,527 52,155 51,903 52,255 52,001 669,671

590 · Management & Maintenance
590.01 · Building Engineer 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 84,500
590.02 · Gas & Electric 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 94,200
590.03 · Water 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 24,000
590.04 · Waste Management 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500
590.05 · Security 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 13,500
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 32,500
590.07 · Custodial Services 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500
590.08 · Elevator 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 2,000
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 21,150

Total 590 · Management & Maintenance 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 276,350

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview 2016 - 2017

July 2016 through June 2017

Page 11 of 128

LindaB
Typewritten Text

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 4

LindaB
Typewritten Text

LindaB
Typewritten Text



TOTAL
Jul 16 Aug 16 Sep 16 Oct 16 Nov 16 Dec 16 Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr 17 May 17 Jun 17 Jul '16 - Jun 17

600 · Community Healthcare Programs
600.02 · Flbk Citizens Crime Prevention 2,500 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 8,000
600.59 · Palomar Health Foundation 2,500 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 10,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 15,000
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 3,000 0 9,000
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 6,000 0 0 0 6,000 0 12,000
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 14,700 0 0 0 7,500 0 0 7,500 0 0 7,500 0 37,200
600.07 · Senior Citizens Center 15,275 0 0 0 15,525 0 0 15,525 0 0 15,538 0 61,863
600.08 · Smiles Project 17,500 0 0 0 17,500 0 0 17,500 0 0 17,500 0 70,000
600.11 · Palomar Family Coun.Serv. 18,500 0 0 0 18,500 0 0 18,500 0 0 18,500 0 74,000
600.14 · Flbk Family Health Center 21,250 0 0 0 21,250 0 0 21,250 0 0 21,250 0 85,000
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 39,446 0 0 0 39,196 0 0 39,197 0 0 12,250 0 130,089
600.18 · Flbk Comm Project - Food Pantry 15,000 0 0 0 15,000 0 0 15,000 0 0 15,000 0 60,000
600.33 · REINS Therapy 15,700 0 0 0 10,200 0 0 10,200 0 0 10,200 0 46,300
600.37 · Trauma Intervention Programs 4,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,000 0 0 0 0 8,000
600.46 · North Inland Comm Prev Program 3,206 0 0 0 3,206 0 0 3,208 0 0 0 0 9,620
600.47 · FUHS - Asperger's Support Ctr 0 0 0 0 3,250 0 0 3,250 0 0 0 0 6,500
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,500 0 0 0 0 8,500
600.57 · North County Fire Protect Distr 29,839 0 0 0 0 0 29,839

Total 600 · Community Healthcare Programs 213,416 0 0 0 167,127 0 0 174,630 0 0 125,738 0 680,911

Total Expense 299,735 69,627 69,627 121,277 241,984 74,774 74,557 249,186 75,184 74,932 201,022 75,030 1,626,932

Net Ordinary Income (278,028) (48,801) (47,682) (99,871) (159,122) 568,669 188,748 (199,240) (20,586) 321,046 (9,296) (45,168) 170,668

Net Income (278,028) (48,801) (47,682) (99,871) (159,122) 568,669 188,748 (199,240) (20,586) 321,046 (9,296) (45,168) 170,668

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview 2016 - 2017

July 2016 through June 2017

Page 12 of 128

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 4



Page 13 of 128



Page 14 of 128



Page 15 of 128



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

102.2 · Cash in Bank - New Operating
Bill P... 06/01/17 9142 Galvanized strategies form... Retainer - Community engagement... -4,000.00
Bill P... 06/01/17 9143 L & M Enterprises, Inc. May bookkeeping hours; mileage r... -3,665.58
Bill P... 06/01/17 9144 Ramirez Landscaping & Tr... Landscape maintenance April 2017 -1,600.00
Bill P... 06/01/17 9145 Village News 1641 -495.00
Bill P... 06/07/17 9146 American Express - Credit ... 0-41007 -1,514.61
Bill P... 06/07/17 9147 BETA Health Insurance (... WC Insurance 8/1-8/3/17; Member... -1,824.00
Bill P... 06/07/17 9148 County of SD-Treasurer 219-6240037 -114.04
Bill P... 06/07/17 9149 Fallbrook Waste - FHD 44... 20-T1 441078 -69.50
Bill P... 06/07/17 9150 Fallbrook Waste - Hospital... 20-T3 439928 -92.70
Bill P... 06/07/17 9151 Holloway Computers IT Services - QB restoration -600.00
Bill P... 06/07/17 9152 Iron Mountain-153 CHSRM -1,233.32
Bill P... 06/07/17 9153 Iron Mountain SX-302 SX302/Fallbrook Hosp. -924.22
Bill P... 06/07/17 9154 Kathleen Bogle May 2017 services rendered -850.00
Bill P... 06/07/17 9155 Ramirez Landscaping & Tr... Landscape maintenance May 2017 -1,600.00
Bill P... 06/07/17 9156 Sun Realty Property research for FRHD 5/8-6/... -2,700.00
Bill P... 06/13/17 9157 AT&T U-Verse - computer 146524365 -100.00
Bill P... 06/13/17 9158 Aztec Cleaning & Maintena... Office cleaning - Inv. 203833 -150.00
Bill P... 06/13/17 9159 Carol Altemeier GPAR-general purpose residential ... -350.00
Bill P... 06/13/17 9160 FPUD - Hospital 2   008757 008757 -239.98
Bill P... 06/13/17 9161 Karn Engineering & Survey... Prepare/revise easement legal des... -1,835.00
Bill P... 06/13/17 9162 Palomar Mountain Premiu... 45919 -24.37
Bill P... 06/13/17 9163 Paragon Services Enginee... -14,749.49
Bill P... 06/13/17 9164 Post Office P.O. BOX ANNUAL RENTAL FEE-... -198.00
Bill P... 06/13/17 9165 Scott & Jackson Esq. Professional services 2017 MAY -9,110.50
Bill P... 06/13/17 9166 Streamline Website monthly fee May 2017 - In... -200.00
Bill P... 06/13/17 9167 T.R.Y. Enterprises Patrol Service for June 2017 -1,100.00
Check 06/15/17 9168 Pamela Knox Dental & Medicare Reimbursements -321.62
Bill P... 06/15/17 9169 Ascent Elevator Services, I... Elevator Service - Inv. 28642 -173.00
Bill P... 06/15/17 9170 County of San Diego Submittal fee for plots and parcels ... -2,599.00
Bill P... 06/20/17 9171 Citrus Plaza Self Storage Storage Unit #322 rental fee 7/1-7/... -203.00
Bill P... 06/20/17 9172 DMV License No. 8P81480 registration r... -184.00
Bill P... 06/20/17 9173 Touchbase 344664 -54.93
Bill P... 06/22/17 9174 All Valley Rooter & Plumbing A+ Urgent Care - drain cleared -105.00
Bill P... 06/22/17 9175 CalPERS 1559595490 -780.86
Bill P... 06/22/17 9176 L & M Enterprises, Inc. Bookkeeping for 6/1-6/22/17 -2,440.00
Bill P... 06/23/17 9178 Iron Mountain SX-302 M. Greeley Records Removed -399.25
Check 06/23/17 9177 VOID CHECK VOID: 0.00
Check 06/29/17 9179 Linda Bannerman Reimbursement for Dental Plan pr... -215.22

Total 102.2 · Cash in Bank - New Operating -56,816.19

TOTAL -56,816.19

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Check Detail Report - June 2017

Report 8

Page 16 of 128



Page 17 of 128



 

 

 
 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes 

 
Wednesday, July 5, 2017 at 5:00 P.M. 

Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook CA 92028 
 
 

Committee Members Present: Finance Committee of the Whole, Barbara Mroz, Chair; Bill Leach, Co-
chair; Howard Salmon; Stephen Abbott and Gordon Tinker. 
Also present: Bookkeeper: Wendy Lyon; Admin. Assistant: Linda Bannerman and Bruce Schwandt. 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Barbara Mroz at 5:25 p.m. 
 

2. Public Comments 
Bruce Schwandt attended the meeting and asked questions about the moneys of the District 
and the accounts of the District and any documents related to the use of those funds.  He 
expressed his concerns regarding the District’s sale of the old hospital building to Crestwood 
Behavioral Health, Inc.  He voiced his dissatisfaction with the District citing concerns about 
actions taken by the District and questioning why this matter was not taken to a public vote. 
 

3. Review of Financial Statements for May 2017 

1) Balance Sheet Comparison of April – May 

2) Income Statement for May 2017 and fiscal year to date 

3) Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget May 

4) Profit & Loss Budget Overview July 2016 – June 2017 
Each of the above financial statements was reviewed and questions were appropriately 
answered.  There were no major variances or other areas of concern. 

5) LAIF Report 
There was a beginning and ending balance in the LAIF account of $1,448,487.47.  

6) Cal-Trust  
There was discussion regarding unrealized loss or gain. The account balance was 
$4,246,902.70.  

7) Property Tax Revenue – fiscal year to date 
Fiscal Year-to-Date the District has received $1,772,009.53 

8) Check Detail as of May 2017 
There were no concerns with the check detail report. 
 

Page 18 of 128



 

 

9) Draft Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
Discussion ensued regarding the draft budget.  It was determined they would like to have 
an explanation for any line item that has a 10 percent variance (increase or decrease). 
There was a question regarding consultant fee increases.    There was discussion 
regarding any projected increase in property tax revenue.  Director Tinker proposed a fiscal 
policy for adoption at the next board meeting.  It would set up two funds:  Community 
Investment Fund for long-range capital investments for real estate, construction and vehicle 
purchases.   The second would be the Operations Fund to cover administration, facilities 
maintenance and Community Health Contracts.  These would need to be sustainable with 
revenue coming to the District.  The committee postponed further proposed budget 
discussion to the next meeting.  The committee recommended the Fiscal Policy be taken to 
the full board for approval at the next regular meeting. 
  

4. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

             

      Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 19 of 128



Page 20 of 128



Page 1 of 8 
 

 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, July 12, 2017, 6:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Public Utilities District, 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

Minutes 

 
 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Gordon Tinker called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Present:  Directors Stephen Abbott, Bill Leach, Barbara Mroz, Howard Salmon and Gordon 
Tinker. 
Also present:  Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson and Accountant Kathy Bogle. 

 

 

B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

None 
 

 

C. PRESENTATIONS 

 C1. Vanessa Hernandez, President – “Fallbrook Outreach” by Fallbrook Youth Advocacy  

  Coalition (Mental Health Systems – North Inland Community Prevention Program) 

Vanessa Hernandez, President of the Fallbrook Youth Advocacy Coalition reported on the 

ongoing Fallbrook Outreach efforts of their organization.  She said they are dedicated to 

keeping the youth in our community drug-free, alcohol-free, gang-free and opposed to 

graffiti.  She said they are dedicated to advocating change about community perceptions 

regarding accepted norms related to substance use and abuse.  She said as the future 

generation they advocate shaping an environment of healthy lifestyles.  Activities include 

yearly leadership conferences, learning good communication skills, participation in 

prescription drug takeback events, and surveying communities by visiting housing areas 

and talking with parents and youth about their perceptions of illegal activities in their 

neighborhoods.  They also have a campaign in local markets and liquor stores wherein 

they place stickers on alcoholic products reminding people that it is illegal to provide 

alcoholic beverages to youth.  Their goal is to make our community better for all and 

future generations.  Lastly, she thanked the Fallbrook Regional Health District for 

providing funding for their organization. 

 C2. Bruce Schwandt – “Questions and Concerns About The Hospital Sale” 

Mr. Schwandt voiced his concern regarding the sale of the old hospital building to 

Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc.  He said he believes it is not safe and not of benefit to 

Fallbrook. He said it will bring a toxic element that will be significant and irreversible 

without a vote from the public approving it, with no services for Fallbrook residents and not 

a single job guaranteed.  He said the District should be allocating resources for the 

greatest benefit of the residents in the District.  He said there have been shaky promises 

and a lack of transparency.  He requested that the BOD act to delay the transaction with 

Crestwood and allow the community to vote, or that the District abandon the transaction. 

Mr. Schwandt then discussed “5150” Involuntary Confinements, dual diagnosis, and said 

there is no guarantee that violent criminals, legally insane people, and sex offenders will 

not be housed at this proposed facility.  He expressed concern that people housed in the 

Page 21 of 128



Page 2 of 8 
 

facility will be coming from three other counties, they will be provided group and individual 

passes and there is no guarantee they will return to their County of origin.  He went on to 

say that Crestwood is in business to make money, there are no requirements for filtering 

of patients, and that ten Crestwood facilities currently house at least one sex offender.  He 

said that currently San Diego Health & Human Services is not contracted with the 

proposed facility.  “Great idea - horrible location”.  He said “We hired you to bring services 

to us.  Not to sell assets, give away our money and bring sex offenders to town.”  He said 

he believes the balance sheet was doctored to take away our vote.  He alleged violations 

of The Brown Act in not notifying residents of the sale.  He expressed concern about 

property values decreasing.  “Why is the hospital building being sold?  Look for a better 

use.” 

 C3. Fallbrook Healing Center by Executive Vice President  

  Patricia Blum, Ph.D., CPRP of Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc.  

Dr. Patricia Blum has worked with Crestwood for 37 years.  She said on the Crestwood 

website and the Fallbrook Regional Health District website that there are answers to many 

of the questions.  She said Crestwood has twenty facilities from Eureka to Chula Vista. 

They are accredited by the Commission of Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities. She 

addressed the Mental Health Rehabilitation Center versus an Acute Psychiatric Hospital.  

She said Crestwood is NOT a 5150 designated site and does not take those individuals.  

Patients are screened thoroughly before being admitted to a mental health rehabilitation 

center.  There is a full vetting process. Rehabilitation is the goal, not stabilization as is 

done in Acute Psychiatric Hospitals.  While San Diego has not yet committed to beds in 

the facility, it is due to the fact that the facility is not yet licensed.  The estimated need for 

North County is ten beds in this facility.  She explained the process for admission and the 

screening process.  Patients are admitted on the order of a doctor.  The people served by 

this facility are returned back to their community of origin with continuing follow up care.  

Patient outings are supervised. The Kingsburg Police Department reported to the 

Fallbrook Sheriff’s Department that Crestwood has been a great community partner and 

the few calls received for service were easily resolved.  Crestwood provides a great 

service and is a valued partner with the Kingsburg Police. 

 C4. 2017-2018 Community Health Contracts 

President Tinker said the District collaborates with non-profits in our communities to 

provide much needed services to the residents of the District.  At the last meeting of the 

Board, Community Health Contracts recipients were announced with a total of 

$858,712.35 being awarded.   Each member of the Board of Directors participated in the 

presentation of an initial check to his/her assigned non-profit organization as follows; 

 

Director Bill Leach 

Boys & Girls Clubs of North County – Summer Water Safety  

Boys & Girls Clubs of North County – Triple Play 

Allison Barclay said 250 children are taught water safety each Summer at the Boys & Girls 

Club.  Triple Play teaches health, fitness and nutrition.  She thanked the District. 

Fallbrook Citizens Crime Prevention Committee -GANAS Mentoring Program 

Phyllis Sweeney noted that Pat Braendel, President and Founder of GANAS, had passed 

away unexpectedly earlier in the year.  Phyllis served as Vice President and accepted the 

check for GANAS which stands for Guide, Advise, Nurture and Support for children 9-16 

and provides after school activities.   

 

Page 22 of 128



Page 3 of 8 
 

Fallbrook Family Health Center – Health Promotion Coordination, Integration and 

Education for the Community 

Denis Vega said the health center is for all residents in the community.  Education, 

prevention and health services are provided at the health center.  A patient advisory 

committee provides input as to needed services.  Working with FRHD the health center 

looks at health disparities and works to provide specific targeted services to meet the 

community health needs. 

 

Director Howard Salmon 

Michelle’s Place – Breast Cancer Resource Center 

Jan Geller thanked the District for supporting these services in Fallbrook.  All services are 

free to those in need, including mammograms, ultrasound and biopsies.  There is a Pink 

Ribbon Association providing multiple services to patients with breast cancer and their 

families. 

Healthy Adventures – Fallbrook Community Center Wellness Project 

Dr. Wendy Hileman discussed services provided for students at La Paloma Elementary 

School including healthy cooking, fitness classes, nutrition and gardening classes.  This 

year they will also work with the Boys & Girls Club. 

Live Oak Park Coalition – Health Improvement Project 

Stephanie Baxter thanked the District for supporting our historical Live Oak Park through 

support for helping to meet ADA requirements for upgrading exercise stations available 

within the Park. 

Mental Health Systems – North Inland Community Prevention Program 

Ron Stark said the Fallbrook Youth Advocacy Coalition is sponsored by this program and 

he said they work with youth to reduce under age drug use and drinking. He said it is 

effective because youth know what is going on in their communities and have a relevant 

perspective.  He thanked the District for its support. 

Jeremiah’s Ranch – Support Group 

Linella Vitale discussed the services provided by this support group to families with   

members with disabilities.  Their focus this year is on health & nutrition and healthy 

gardening. 

 

Director Stephen Abbott 

Foundation for Senior Care – Care Advocate Program 

         Care Van & Expanded Rides Transportation 

         Respite Support at the Adult Day Care 

                    Door through Door Hospital to Home Program 

Rachel Mason described the four programs listed above and the many services they 

provide, e.g. respite for caregivers; rides for seniors.  The Door through Door program is 

new and serves patients having need for services following a hospital stay.  She thanked 

the District for support. 

 

Director Barbara Mroz 

Fallbrook Food Pantry – Nutritious Food for our Neighbors 

Jennifer Vetch said the support from the District and the community provides food for the 

hungry.  The Food Pantry works with the District and other not-for-profits to provide 

additional services, e.g. health screenings as well.  She noted all of these organizations 

do great work in our community. 

Page 23 of 128



Page 4 of 8 
 

 

Fallbrook Senior Center – Mobility Program 

              Senior Nutrition – Home Delivered Meals 

Phyllis Sweeney said the Senior Center is very grateful for the support for the Senior 

Mobility Program and the Senior Nutrition – Home Delivered Meals.  Exercise is Medicine 

and the exercise equipment donated by the District helps to keep seniors exercising.  

Many of the seniors requiring home delivered meals are ex-military in our community.  

Food is Medicine too and healthy, nutritional meals are essential and much appreciated 

by seniors who are home-bound. 

Fallbrook Smiles – Celebrate Health 

Janine Loescher said Celebrate Health provides health screenings in the schools, 

counseling services and partners with other not-for profits in the community on several 

health related projects. 

 

Director Gordon Tinker 

Palomar Family Counseling – Healthy Bodies, Healthy Minds 

Lisa Turner thanked the District for their support.  The program was developed in 

conjunction with the Fallbrook Elementary School District.  It targets behavioral health and 

physical health and involves working with students and parents. 

Trauma Intervention Program of San Diego – TIP 

Shay Gebler-Bence and Dale Stewart discussed the work accomplished by trained 

volunteers helping in times of trauma.  First responders are grateful for the support 

provided by these volunteers in times of crises. 

UCSD Eye Mobile for Children  

Eric Hernandez said UCSD provides vision screening for children in pre-school.  If 

needed, they are referred to the mobile eye clinic at no cost to the parent.  Glasses are 

also provided at no cost if needed.  Some serious eye issues, if identified early, can save 

sight. 

REINS – Behavioral Health & Wellness Therapy Program 

Director Tinker noted that the representative was called away for an emergency.  He said 

this program provides physically and mentally strengthening therapy on horseback for the 

special needs community with the assistance of a large force of well trained volunteers 

while promoting overall health and well-being and physical activity to all participants. 

 
 

D. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

President Tinker said there were many people filling out speaker request cards to address the 

Board.  He said while the cards indicate a speaker has up to five minutes, he would appreciate 

speakers limiting their time to three minutes. 

Peter Klein questioned the California Health & Safety Code cited previously in regards to assets 

and questioned if there was a “bait & switch” to avoid transparency and keep the matter of the 

sale of the old hospital building from going to a vote. 

Tracey Schwandt said before the Board voted for the sale to Crestwood, was there any 

consideration of the District resident’s needs.  She questioned the number of patients that can be 

treated at the proposed Fallbrook Crestwood location.  She said in a meeting with representatives 

from Supervisor Horn’s office they told her they knew nothing about it and weren’t “happy” about 

it.  She said Crestwood is a for-profit and if the sale goes through it will be an asset lost forever.  

She wants the escrow stopped and she wants a vote. 

Page 24 of 128



Page 5 of 8 
 

Brian Hobbs said he is a long-time resident and has concern about transparency.  How can the 

Board make a decision without a community vote?  Let the people vote.  He said he wants to see 

a copy of the signed Purchase & Sale Agreement and valuations.  How was the 50% of assets 

calculated?   

Vi Dupre noted that the need for mental health services is great.  The District Board worked very 

hard to replace hospital services in this community and learned it is not sustainable.  She said 

there is fear of mentally ill people.  What about compassion, kindness and caring? 

Eric Revere said he understands the fears and anguish expressed regarding mentally ill people.  

He had the same views until his son was diagnosed with schizophrenia while in college.  Mr. 

Revere said he has since been involved with the National Alliance on Mentally Illness (NAMI) and 

learned that community rehabilitation is effective.  He supports Crestwood located in Fallbrook. 

John Stone expressed his concern about Crestwood being located near two board & care 

facilities.  Fallbrook residents are not safe with a “medium security prison” filled with unfortunate 

souls from outside the area.  Fallbrook will become a dumping ground for pedophiles, sexual 

predators, criminals on early release.  Stop it now.  It’s all about the money. 

Liz Kruidenier, President of NAMI North Coastal, said she hears more fear than hope expressed 

here.  She said she is an immigrant American and appreciates being here.  She is grateful to 

places like Crestwood too in doing a great job for people who cannot help themselves.  These 

people with time and help can recover.  Love makes the world go around and she doesn’t sense 

a lot of it in this room.  Look into your hearts. 

Joe Beyer complimented the Board for listening. Do what is morally and ethically right and 

remember, Fallbrook is The Friendly Village. 

Travis Ives of Cushman & Wakefield served as real estate broker for the sale of the hospital 

building.  He provided a history of the efforts to sell the building.  Selling a vacant hospital is not 

easy.  A qualified and capable buyer has been difficult to find.  If not Crestwood, or another 

behavioral health provider, it is likely the value will be reduced to such that the value of the land 

is all that is left. 

Genny Day had completed a request to speak card that was missed during the public comment 

period.  She spoke just prior to adjournment.  She said her daughter suffered from postpartum 

depression and she tried really hard to get well, but couldn’t get into a facility.  She did not 

succeed and committed suicide.  She spoke in support of behavioral health services being 

provided in Fallbrook for someone else in the future who will have an opportunity to overcome a 

mental health issue.   

 
 

E. CONSENT ITEMS 

 E1. Approval of May 2017 Financial Statements  

 E2. Minutes of June 7, 2017 Special Board Meeting 

 E3. Minutes of June 7, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 

 E3. Minutes of June 14, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 

Action:  On motion duly made by Director Salmon, seconded by Bill Leach to approve the 

Consent Items as presented.  Motion carried. 5-0 

 
 

F. REPORTS 

F1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 

Director Mroz provided the Finance Committee report for the meeting of July 12th.  She 

noted that in addition to the entire board and bookkeeper, Bruce Schwandt attended the 

Page 25 of 128



Page 6 of 8 
 

meeting to voice his concerns regarding the sale of the old hospital building to Crestwood.  

An overview of the financial reports resulted in no major variances.  Overall, continued 

steady growth was noted from April to May, 2017.  Profit & Loss variances were explained 

and warranted.  The LAIF account balance was $1,448,487.47 and Cal Trust had an 

increase of up to $4,000 with a balance of $4,246,902.70.  The Property Tax Revenue for 

May 31st was $14,469.90 and total Property Tax Revenue was $1,772,009.53.  There 

was discussion of the proposed draft budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2017 thru June 30, 

2018.  Some details regarding anticipated variances are still in consideration and will be 

discussed at the next Finance Committee meeting. Thereafter the proposed budget will be 

brought to the board for approval.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

F2. Gov’t/Public Relations/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and Tinker 

 None. 

F3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 

 None. 

F4. Executive Director – Bobbi Palmer (presented by Director Mroz) 

Director Mroz provided the executive director’s report in her absence.  Regarding 

Community Health, a Health Fair was held at the Fallbrook Family Health Center on June 

24th, with participation by the District and the CSUSM RN students, who provided health 

screenings.  A Wellness Summit sponsored by ACHD and Stanford University takes place 

July 13th in Sacramento.  Director Bill Leach and Administrative Assistant Linda 

Bannerman will attend.  Interest has been expressed in utilizing the downstairs area of the 

FRHD office building for several uses including the following:  health classes, support 

groups, health-related non-profit activities, a computer lab, health center activities, and 

non-profit business meetings.  This community space ideally would be a benefit to our 

residents.  The executive director will be inviting our residents and conducting focus 

groups to share their recommendations.  

F5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 

Legal Counsel said most of his remarks would be confined to the Discussion/Action 

section of the agenda.  He said in response to some of the remarks made during the 

Public Comment Section he wanted to note the following. 

There are two separate matters to be considered in this sale.  The first is a transfer of 

assets.  If an asset represents fifty percent or more of the total assets, it requires a vote of 

the public.  The second consideration is the disposal of surplus property under Health & 

Safety Code 32121.2.  The property must be sold at fair market value.  Any assessments 

of the property are not considered public information until the property is sold. 
 

G. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

 President Tinker said items G2 and G3 would be considered prior to G1. 

 G1. Proposal to Create and Adopt a District Fiscal Policy 

 G2. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 418 – Authorization to Dispose of District 

  Surplus Property 

Legal Counsel said this Resolution formally authorizes the sale of surplus property.  Four 

letters had been sent in January to the Fallbrook Elementary School District, Fallbrook 

High School District, Palomar College and the County of San Diego offering the old 

hospital building as surplus property.  They had 60 days to respond and negative 

responses had been received from all four.  

Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Mroz, to approve 

Resolution 418 authorizing the sale of the District’s surplus property. 

Page 26 of 128



Page 7 of 8 
 

Director Abbott said he can say with confidence that the building is surplus property, 

which is a separate discussion from what it should be used for in the future. 

Roll Call Vote:  Director Leach – Aye; Director Salmon – Aye; Director Abbott – Aye; 

Director Mroz – Aye and Director Tinker – Aye. Motion carried 5-0. 

 G3. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 419 – Ratification/Approval 

  of Purchase and Sale Agreement and Authorizing Signatories 

Legal Counsel said this Resolution finalizes and memorializes the actions taken by the 

Board of Directors in their efforts to find a use for the old hospital building. 

President Tinker asked each member of the board if they had any comments: 

Director Leach said he had interest in serving on the FRHD Board due to his concern 

regarding the closure of the hospital.  He noted his disappointment that much of the 

audience had already left the room.  He said he knows the Board worked very hard to find 

a good use for the facility.  He lives near the facility with his family and he has no fear of a 

Crestwood facility.  He said he looks forward to moving on to new health & wellness 

programs that can be provided for this District. 

Director Abbott said having been President of this Board when the hospital closed, he 

would have thought that that would have been the more difficult decision.  He said he is 

struggling with this decision, and he thanks those who stayed to the end of the meeting.  

He said he has concerns that perhaps not all answers have been provided to the 

questions having been asked.  He said the Board has been working very hard since being 

notified that Community Health Systems (CHS) would be shutting down services.   

Director Mroz thanked those in the audience who stayed in the meeting.  She said the 

members of the Board have always tried to do the right thing for the community.  She said 

she believes there is a great need for mental health facilities. 

Director Tinker said this has been a real struggle.  The closure of the hospital was a huge 

loss for this community.  He reiterated the history of the efforts made to keep a hospital in 

Fallbrook.  Crestwood has a good track record and many questions have been answered.  

The need for behavioral health beds has been well documented. 

Action:  Director Salmon moved to approve Resolution 419, seconded by Director Mroz.  

Roll Call vote:  Director Leach – Aye; Director Salmon – Aye; Director Abbott  - further 

discussion ensued due to concern expressed by Director Abbott that perhaps there is a 

need to provide additional answers.  Motion failed. 

Action:  Director Abbott moved, Director Salmon seconded to postpone action on 

Resolution 419 to do further homework in answering questions having arose regarding the 

sale of the old hospital building.  Roll Call Vote:  Director Leach – Aye; Director Salmon – 

Aye; Director Abbott – Aye; Director Mroz – Aye and Director Tinker – Aye.  Motion 

carried 5-0.   

 G4. CSDA Board of Directors 2017 Election 

President Tinker said resumes had been submitted.  Michael Mack is a Fallbrook resident 

having submitted his resume.  President Tinker asked if anyone had any 

recommendations.  

Action:  Director Tinker moved that the FRHD Board of Directors vote for Michael Mack, 

seconded by Director Salmon.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 27 of 128



Page 8 of 8 
 
H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 

 H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 

  H1a. Consideration of the Proposed Budget  

  H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• Healthy You! Healthy Communities! – Thursday, July 13, 2017, California 

Endowment, Sacramento 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) meeting 

– Monday, July 17, 2017, 9:00-10:30am, Fallbrook Public Utility District Board 

Room 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday,  August  2,  2:00-3:00pm 

   • Woman of Wellness – Thursday, August 3, 2017, 6pm – Fallbrook Library 

   • ACHD 65th Annual Meeting – September 12-14, 2017, San Diego 

H2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, August 9, 2017, Fallbrook Public Utility 

District Board Room 

 
 

I. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m. to either an adjourned meeting within one week properly 

noticed, or a special meeting properly noticed to consider the following two items not yet 

addressed on the agenda: 

 

 G1. Proposal to Create and Adopt a District Fiscal Policy 

 G3 Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 419 – Ratification/Approval 

  of Purchase and Sale Agreement and Authorizing Signatories 

 

 

      

Gordon Tinker, President 

 

      

Stephen Abbott, Secretary 

Page 28 of 128



Page 29 of 128



Page 1 of 5 
 

 
   

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
Friday, July 28, 2017, 6:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Public Utilities District, 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 
Minutes 

 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 President Tinker called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

B. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
President Tinker said since there were so many people wanting to address the Board, while five 
minutes is allotted, if possible please limit the remarks to three minutes.  He also cautioned that since 
there will be differing opinions expressed, please be courteous to all. 
 
Betty Locke said she sincerely objects to Crestwood.  She said the community needs a hospital.  She 
doesn’t want people imported here for mental health services. 
Jim Sciarra thanked the Board for the opportunity to provide comments.  He said they selected 
Fallbrook in part due to the hospital being here.  We are a community of volunteers.  What has been 
proposed to meet the medical needs of our community?  He still considers the building a valued asset.  
He wants a vote to go to the public. Crestwood is a for profit company.  He wants medical facilities in 
our community.   
Hollis Moyse commended the Board for their hard work in the last few years in securing a use for the 
property, for which maintenance is costing upward to a quarter of a million dollars each year. He said 
he believes the Board has done an excellent job of finding a successor to the hospital.  Seismic 
requirements preclude the building’s use in that capacity in the future.  He supports the District’s 
Community Health Contract program providing funding to non-profit organizations which in turn provide 
much needed services in our community.  He again thanked the Board of Directors. 
Peter Klein thanked the Board for allowing him to speak.  He named patients with felony arrests treated 
in Crestwood facilities in California and said Patricia Blum had said no one with a violent felony 
conviction would be treated at the Fallbrook Crestwood facility.   He questioned the answers provided 
by Crestwood representative Patricia Blum, Ph.D. to multiple questions asked by the opposition to 
Crestwood as well as some of the answers provided by Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson.   
Lynette Boyd said she has lived in Fallbrook more than 70 years.  She said she believes Fallbrook can 
sustain a hospital.  She expressed concern that the children in Fallbrook need protection.  She doesn’t 
want imported danger.  She said she is concerned that property values will diminish.  She would like to 
see another facility go into the old hospital building. 
Dr. Frank Winton said he served on the FRHD Board and knows how diligently the Board worked to 
find another operator for the hospital.  He recognizes that the loss of the hospital was huge for this 
community.  He said he believes the fear of the patients who would be treated here is overstated.  He 
said he supports that the old building be used as a place of healing and Crestwood would provide that 
service.   
Tracey Schwandt thanked the Board for the Special meeting.  She presented two seedling oak trees, 
one named Hope, the other Harmony.  She shared an image of two paths.  She asked the Board to 
please reconsider the action of selling the old hospital to Crestwood.  She wants a vote for the public. 
Bruce Schwandt said the members of the Board will decide whether to sell the old hospital building, or 
put the decision to a vote.  Officials are elected to act in the best interests of the people voting them in 
to office.  The culture, safety, and prosperity of Fallbrook will change dramatically if this sale goes 

Page 30 of 128



Page 2 of 5 
 

through.  He questioned the impact on property values.   He believes a better path to the decision of the 
sale is a public vote.  He offered to work with the Board to find a better use for the building. 
Maryann Hobbs said she believes the close of escrow can be delayed and the Board can choose to 
take this matter to a public vote.  A sale is permanent.  Leasing the property to Crestwood gives us an 
ongoing discussion and doesn’t dispose of the asset.  She believes there was lack of due diligence in 
the process of coming to the decision to sell to Crestwood.   
Brian Hobbs said the path forward should be to cancel this transaction and pay the damages.  He 
wants a special committee of residents and board members to look into this matter further.  He 
mentioned due diligence, transparency and vetting providing definitions of each word.  He questioned 
the actions of the Board in signing the Sale & Purchase Agreement with Crestwood.  He said while a 
public vote is not mandated, he believes it is the right thing to do. 
Morgan Cadmus said we are all neighbors and it is important to have an understanding of this 
important transaction.  He said he understands Fallbrook cannot currently sustain a hospital.  He said 
he oversees a residential care facility for seniors directly across from the old hospital and has concern 
for their safety.  There are many other services Fallbrook needs.  He asked the Board to extend the 
negotiations for the sale of the old hospital. 
Jim Greeley said he is a 25 year resident of Fallbrook and what compelled him to attend this meeting 
was the confusion and fear expressed in the paper as it relates to mental health rehabilitation.  He said 
the jobs being offered are an opportunity for young people in our community.  He endorses the 
Crestwood facility.   
Jerry Hanson said he is a businessman in town.  He said he believes a vote of the public is warranted 
in this matter.  He said he sees no economic benefit for Fallbrook with Crestwood coming into town.  He 
believes Crestwood would bring more traffic, more possible crimes and a bad situation for the 
community.  He said he is not fearful, he is concerned.  We are not insensitive to the needs of the 
mentally ill.  He is concerned Fallbrook is not a proper location, in part due to inadequate police 
coverage. 
Paul Garrett is a big fan of Fallbrook and understands the hospital is not sustainable.  He said he would 
like to see the old hospital building used for meeting other medical needs in the community.  
Roy Moosa said he has been involved with the District since the entire process of closing the hospital.  
He said he saw the offers made and the disappointment when not coming to fruition.  He currently 
serves on the Advisory Committee.  He knows the members of the Board and how dedicated they are 
to serving this community in the best way possible.  He has full confidence in the amount of homework 
this Board has done and stands with them in their decision. 
Adam Foster said he became concerned about this matter after looking at Facebook and Friends of 
Fallbrook.  He said he had difficulty obtaining answers to his questions and had e-mailed Patricia Blum 
with no response from her.  He wants the matter put to a public vote. 
Scott Atkins said he grew up in Fallbrook and then lived in Sacramento.  He lived next to a Crestwood 
facility for 24 years and there were no issues in all that time.  He moved back to Fallbrook 5 years ago 
and says the facility can be run properly.   
Vicky Bartlett said she feels it is unfair to characterize the opponents to the Crestwood facility as fearful.  
She said her mother lives across from where the facility is located.  Do we have an adequate police 
force?  She has concerns, unsure Fallbrook is the place for Crestwood. 
Eddie Valencia said he lives next to the old hospital.  He said the Board does a great job.  He thinks the 
facility can be used for a better purpose than a mental health rehab facility.  Do the right thing for the 
community. 
Vi Dupre said she has lived here for 12 years.  She has worked in health care for 52 years.  Having 
served as Administrator of the Fallbrook Healthcare District, she has seen firsthand how hard the 
members of the Board have worked during and since the closure of the hospital.  They are honorable 
people.  Mental health services are a huge need everywhere.  The people seeking treatment are less to 
be feared than the 37 pedophiles living in the area with no treatment.  She thanked the Board members 
for their diligence and work for this community. 
Mark Stevens said he lives near the old hospital and has concern about his property value decreasing 
and the safety of the community.  He requested a vote of the people. 

Page 31 of 128



Page 3 of 5 
 

Carol Hanson said she believes we all appreciate the efforts made by the Board to find a buyer for the 
old hospital.  She said she would like to see the old hospital used for a different purpose.  She has 
concern about safety and the lack of a hospital. 
Vince Ross said he has followed the extreme challenges this Board has dealt with.  He said the Board 
is very competent and he and the Board want the best for Fallbrook.   He expressed his appreciation to 
the Board.   
Brandi Morann said she is new to Fallbrook and loves living here.  She said she has a medical 
background and also worked in real estate.  She said her concern has to do with Crestwood affecting 
the reputation of Fallbrook, and thereby concern that her property will decrease in value. 
Jennifer Jeffries said the best predictor of future behavior is past behavior.  She said she has observed 
this Board through all times and she has no reason to doubt the Board.  She said the decision will be 
principled and right for this town.   
Scott Denton thanked the Board for the courtesy to speak.  He said there have been mental health 
issues in his family and he has visited many facilities.  He expressed concern for community safety. 
Linda Johnson said she would prefer that the old hospital be used for medical services in the 
community.  It should be controlled by the community, and used for the community.  Believes a vote is 
in order.  What will the proceeds of the sale of hospital be used for, and will the public have a say.  
What is the purpose of the District without a hospital?   
Barry Meadow said a lot of effort has gone into the sale of the old hospital building.  He said Crestwood 
will not be a hospital for the mentally insane.  Why all the questions about escapes and police.  It will 
not be a criminal facility.  The man who lived next to a Crestwood facility impressed him most.  They 
experienced no problems. 
Jeanne Meadow thanked everyone who has put effort into learning about Crestwood.  She said she did 
not appreciate the derogatory comments about the Board.  We need to come together for the good of 
Fallbrook in many ways.  There is lots of work to do in Fallbrook. 
Tracy Campbell said she is not afraid of mental illness.  She is afraid of pedophiles and rapists who will 
be housed at Crestwood. 
Dee Lanzello has been in Fallbrook for 35 years.  She said she doesn’t have fear, she has concern.  
Lots of people have worked very hard to make Fallbrook the great place it is.  Many have invested 
money into the community.  She is concerned about the value of what she has invested in for many 
years.  She doesn’t believe Crestwood is the right thing for Fallbrook.   
President Tinker called for a break at 8:17 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 8:27 p.m. 
  
President Tinker said he would provide time for members of the Board to provide their input into the 
matter of the sale of the old hospital building. 
 
Director Leach stated that he heard confusion and misunderstanding as relates to the hospital building.  
He said he knows there are many people with nostalgic ties to the facility where their children were 
born and the loss of the hospital services is significant to the community.  He said he has learned that 
operating the building as a hospital is no longer sustainable. While there had been many entities 
expressing interest in the building, for a variety of reasons not one offer came to fruition.  The building 
is currently empty, is a magnet for crime and costing more than $20,000 per month for maintenance.  In 
a survey of major health disparities in our community, mental health was one of those identified, long 
before Crestwood expressed interest.  He said he lives near the vicinity of the proposed Crestwood 
facility, has two daughters, and does not believe the facility poses any risks to the community.  He said 
there is a difference between concern and fearmongering and he believes fearmongering is what has 
been happening on social media and in advertisements designed to incite fear.  He believes there is no 
correlation between Crestwood and bringing pedophiles, sex predators and violent criminals into 
Fallbrook.  This would be a mental rehabilitation facility, not a hospital for the criminally insane. While 
there is no guarantee that all employees will be from the District, jobs will be available.  He suggested 
that proceeds from the sale will help to contribute to the Community Health Contracts process and he 

Page 32 of 128



Page 4 of 5 
 

invited the community to participate to determine ways in which the proceeds can provide health 
services in our District. 
 
Director Salmon said this has been a difficult, challenging decision for this Board.  He said three years 
ago he was aware the hospital was having trouble and believed he might be able to provide help to 
keep the hospital operating since he has worked in healthcare all of his life.  By the time he was seated 
on the Board, the hospital was closed.  He said he learned the members of this Board are very 
dedicated and talented, and also learned the valid reasons the hospital closed.  He said his five major 
concerns regarding the sale of the old hospital building included safety, real estate values, the 
allocation of beds, does Crestwood benefit the District and lastly would the facility be of service to those 
in need.  He said the track record of Crestwood has been very good. He discussed the type of patients 
Crestwood would serve.  He said he and Director Mroz visited a Crestwood facility in San Diego and 
observed that it is next to a high school, a nursing home and across the street is a church.  He was 
impressed with his tour of the facility.  Crestwood is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of 
Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF).  He read the impressive results of a recent Crestwood survey.  He 
believes Crestwood would be an asset to Fallbrook. 
 
Director Abbott said he and his wife visited several Crestwood facilities.  Two of the three tours were 
provided by patients/residents in the facilities.  Schools, pre-schools were located nearby.  Regarding 
AWOLs, Crestwood Risk Management reported that out of all patients considered AWOL, there was 
only one bad outcome:  the patient committed suicide.  There was no risk to community residents.  He 
said he was surprised at the last regular meeting of the Board when most of the audience left prior to 
the decision on the agenda regarding the sale to Crestwood.  The easiest decision for the Board would 
have been to pass the resolution at that meeting.  However, at that point, the decision was secondary.  
What was most concerning to him was the public confidence.  He said he questioned if the Board might 
have missed something. That is why the Board took action to postpone a decision.  He discussed 
several possible scenarios, noting that no matter what decision is made, there will be division in the 
community.  Based on the CARF Accreditation, Crestwood is a top performer in the mental healthcare 
arena.  He said he is concerned that many in the audience are still really concerned about the process.  
That is a piece he is still trying to reconcile.   
 
Director Mroz likened this decision to hearing the diagnosis of cancer for her husband.  She said while 
there were no guarantees, there was a lot of homework to be done, the medical team was competent 
and they were confident if they did the right things there would be a good outcome.  She said cancer is 
a frightening word, litigation is a frightening word and mental illness is too. She said she is amazed by 
the people in this community and wants to work with them for a good outcome regarding Crestwood.  
She knows the Board has worked diligently in this matter.  She feels positive that selling the old hospital 
to Crestwood is a good decision.  She thanked everyone for sharing their thoughts and concerns and 
being a part of the process. 
 
Director Tinker said he and his wife have lived here for 42 years.  He served in various capacities 
serving this town for 32 years.  The last thing he would do would be to risk the public safety of this 
community.  The feedback from police departments in communities with Crestwood facilities have no 
issues with Crestwood and deem them to be a good community partners.  He thanked Stephen and 
Howard for the delay in making the decision as he has learned even more about Crestwood during the 
past two weeks and it is all positive. The difference between mental health hospitals and mental 
rehabilitation facilities is clear.  5150 patients are taken to acute care or mental health hospitals.  He 
said he spoke with the owners of Silvergate Residence and they welcome the Crestwood facility.  
Regarding the future of Fallbrook Regional Health District, he noted there is more to healthcare than 
what happens in hospitals.  Wellness programs, preventing the preventable, the possibility of a 
Wellness Center (not a gym) and other health programs are all in consideration.  The non-profit 
organizations we support use volunteers and there is “bang for buck” in providing the many services 
they provide.  He provided examples of the services provided.  The future of our health district is 
making a healthier community. 

Page 33 of 128



Page 5 of 5 
 

 
C. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 

C1. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 419 – Ratification/Approval 
  of Purchase and Sale Agreement and Authorizing Signatories 

Action:  On motion duly made by Director Leach, seconded by Director Mroz, the Board 
approved and adopted Resolution No. 419 ratifying the purchase and sale agreement and 
amendment thereto with respect to the sale of real property and authorizing signatories in 
connection therewith by the following roll call vote: 
Director Abbott commented that at the regular meeting this month he had moved to delay action 
on this item in order to assure due diligence and answer any lingering questions regarding 
Crestwood facilities.  He said with the closure of the hospital, other communities bore the health 
care burden for Fallbrook. The health care system extends beyond our borders, and with 
Crestwood we would have patients from other communities.  There are still no contracts from 
counties, just commitments until Crestwood is licensed.  The County Grand Jury recognized the 
need for mental health services. Director Abbott said we would not be at this decision point if 
there were other options.  It’s likely the next best option would be an auction, with no control 
over the situation.  He said the right thing takes a lot of forms.  Leadership is doing what you 
feel is right is based on the best information available to you at the time.  It’s not the easy or 
most popular thing.  It’s the right thing.  He said his action last month was based on emotion, 
this month on reason and logic and feedback. 
Director Leach – Aye 
Director Salmon – Aye 
Director Mroz – Aye 
Director Tinker – Aye 
Director Abbott – Aye 
Motion carried 5-0. 
 

C2. Proposal to Create and Adopt a District Fiscal Policy 
President Tinker read the policy which set up two funds:  Community Investment Fund and 
Operations Fund.   
Legal Counsel recommended postponing action on this policy to the next meeting when it is 
brought back in a more correct and proper form. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Leach to postpone action on 
this item to the next meeting.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 

 
E. ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 
 
 
        
 Gordon Tinker, President 
 
 
 
        
 Stephen Abbott, Secretary 

Page 34 of 128



Page 35 of 128



Page 36 of 128



Page 37 of 128



Page 38 of 128



Page 39 of 128



Page 40 of 128



Page 41 of 128



Page 42 of 128



Page 43 of 128



Page 44 of 128



Page 45 of 128



Page 46 of 128



Page 47 of 128



Page 48 of 128



Page 49 of 128



Page 50 of 128



Page 51 of 128



Page 52 of 128



Page 53 of 128



Page 54 of 128



Page 55 of 128



Page 56 of 128



Page 57 of 128



Page 58 of 128



Page 59 of 128



Page 60 of 128



Page 61 of 128



Page 62 of 128



Page 63 of 128



Page 64 of 128



Page 65 of 128



Page 66 of 128



Page 67 of 128



Page 68 of 128



Page 69 of 128



Page 70 of 128



Page 71 of 128



Page 72 of 128



Page 73 of 128



Page 74 of 128



Page 75 of 128



Page 76 of 128



Page 77 of 128



Page 78 of 128



Page 79 of 128



Page 80 of 128



Page 81 of 128



Page 82 of 128



Page 83 of 128



Page 84 of 128



Page 85 of 128



Page 86 of 128



Page 87 of 128



Page 88 of 128



Page 89 of 128



Page 90 of 128



Page 91 of 128



Page 92 of 128



Page 93 of 128



Page 94 of 128



Page 95 of 128



Page 96 of 128



Page 97 of 128



Page 98 of 128



Page 99 of 128



Page 100 of 128



Page 101 of 128



Page 102 of 128



Page 103 of 128



Page 104 of 128



Page 105 of 128



Page 106 of 128



Page 107 of 128



Page 108 of 128



Page 109 of 128



Page 110 of 128



Page 111 of 128



Page 112 of 128



Page 113 of 128



Page 114 of 128



Page 115 of 128



Page 116 of 128



Page 117 of 128



Page 118 of 128



Page 119 of 128



Page 120 of 128



Page 121 of 128



Page 122 of 128



Page 123 of 128



Page 124 of 128



Page 125 of 128



Page 126 of 128



Page 127 of 128



Page 128 of 128




